
        Camp Nauvoo Operations Group Meeting

        Jan. 9, 2024


The meeting was started with an opening prayer given by Deb Batey.


Deb started with asking for approval for previous minutes.  Lee moved to 
accept the minutes, Brad seconded.  Vote taken, passed.


Next was election of officers for the coming year.  Deb asked if anyone was 
interested in being chair of the group.  Dawn nominated Deb, no other names 
were presented.  Dawn asked for the vote, taken and passed unanimously.

Next was secretary - Deb nominated Dawn,  Doug seconded.  Vote taken and 
passed.  Deb then asked for treasurer, stating Brad and Lynn were working 
together on this and it is working well.  Dawn made a motion to continue 
with the 2 of them continuing, Doug seconded.  Vote taken and passed.


Discussion about camp dates for reunions, changes had been mentioned and 
decision was made to continue with past dates.


Brad’s list of the five year plan was next on the list.  Brad stated that this 
was just a beginning letting everyone know what it needed to be done, and 
what needs to be done right away.  A new garage door for the shed where 
the tractor is was needed right away.  One door needs to be replaced, and an 
opener added for each door.  Dawn stated that she would get an estimate.


Brad reported that both bids for solar installation had been received, and 
needs to be investigated and discussed.  Both companies who submitted bids 
are willing to sit in on a Zoom meeting to answer questions.  Robert offered 
to do some investigating and work on the process.  Rebates are available, 
but will not last long from the state of Illinois.  Brad made the 
recommendation that we look over both estimates and discuss this at 
another time.  Morfeld Electric states the return on the payout would be 
reached in 3 1/2 years, the other company says 6 1/2 years.  Both have said 
they would work on the paperwork applications for all rebates and 
acceptance by the power company.  Deb suggested meeting in 2 weeks to 
discuss all of the information and quotes.  Next meeting on 1/23/2024.


Plans or ideas to work with the Historic Sites was next.  We agree to 
continue trying to work with them.


Plans to support CVG in the form of workers or money to help them so that 
we can help support working with them for the youth.  One idea was to work 
on an A/C unit, but work needed to be done on that building before we could 
do that.  Help to do that is the biggest need.  


Next was the new carpet.  Brad said he feels we can get that accomplished 
this year, due to the fact that we have more than half of the money needed. 


Replace door to the office in the lodge.

New light switches for rooms, cabins and tiny houses.

New griddles are ordered.




Replace the decking on the lodge- wood is on the grounds.

Sinks in men’s restroom replaced. 

Broken window on the NE side of the lodge.

Gutters are done with the exception of covering part of the new gutters.


Replace 2 mini splits at a time, to keep from having emergency situations.  
One for the lodge is already ordered.


Drainage for the side of the lodge.

Emergency lights repaired or replaced.

Maps for emergency exits/ shelters.


Deb asked about a work weekend to get some things done in the lodge.  We 
are looking into dates to make this work.


Todd talked about the camp board working with both camp grounds, and 
hoping to get Camp Nauvoo to help fund some retreats for young adults and 
youth.  We are the ones who generates income to fund the outreach 
activities.  He feels that we have a responsibility to the Mission Center to 
help grow the effective outreach.  Brad feels we need continue working 
with the CVG group to keep it running for using it for the youth.  We need 
to do what we can to help them in the way they need help.  Todd said what he 
needs to do is work with them to see what they need/want for help with the 
grounds.  


Doug pointed out that Ourth Hall has some issues that need to be worked on 
fixing before we look into running water/sewer lines.  Lynn said he would 
work on making a list of what needs to be done to get it into shape for us 
all to look over before that decision is made.


Doug made a motion to meet in 2 weeks to continue the discussion on the 
solar- Dawn seconded, meeting adjourned.


Respectfully Submitted.


Dawn Durgin




    Camp Nauvoo Operations Group Meeting

          Jan. 23, 2024


The meeting was opened with a prayer by Deb Batey.


Discussion began with the solar energy plan.  Robert has been working on 
researching the needs for this.  Robert reported he had been comparing the 
2 bids and had contacted a third.  He gave the amounts of $2,150 per KW 
hour for Mohrfeld Electric, and Lionberger is charging $2,600 per KW 
hour, representing how much electricity can be generated.  The third group 
was $3,400, which was turned down.  He feels Mohrfeld is better 
considering price, but we would have to come up with the full price up 
front.  Rebates for the two thirds we could get will take up to a year, 
meaning we would have to have $240,000 to start.  Charges seem to be an 
equal split between labor and materials.  Mohrfeld is able to provide 
service when needed at a charge, but they do have a warranty.


Deb asked how much our electricity costs us each month, and how much we 
would be saving.  Brad stated we paid close to $27,000 last year.  After 
rebates we would pay about $80,000.  These panels should last at least 25 
years before needing to be replaced. Robert asked if we thought we would 
be increasing our usage in the coming years.  We agreed our usage would 
definitely not decrease, especially if we do additions to tiny houses or 
laundry facilities like we want to.  We have made it clear to the companies 
that we want to be sure that we have more than what we currently use to 
allow for any type of expansion.  


The question of available money came up, insuring that we could afford to 
do this without draining our assets.  Robert reported that the $150,000 
from the retreat house has now increased to $165,000 that we are sitting 
on, and the money from the sale of the church in Keokuk could be helpful.

Robert mentioned the possibility of getting some money from the Mission 
Center on a short term basis.   Brad made a comment that we might want to 
consider doing one of the areas first, and do the second one later when we 
have a chance to have more financial ability to do it comfortably.


Doug asked Robert about his confidence in receiving the rebates.  Robert is 
very confident in the federal, less in the state, but still a very good chance 
of working with it.  


Deb asked if we should come back in a week to vote, but Robert thinks it will 
take more than a week to have all of the answers we need and permission 
from world church.  Evelyn said Myra asked about what we would do with 
panels that need to be replaced when that time comes.  Robert said that is a 
process is growing and developing the recycling of those that is becoming a 
very real bonus. 


Brad pointed out that his fear if we do this that we would not be able to 
proceed with any other projects due to lack of funds.  Robert said that our 
return would be about 3 and a half years for pay back.  Kent said that we 
will be using energy overnight when there is no production, but during the 



down times we will be generating more than we use.  Robert stated that 
Ameren becomes our energy bank, and we put in what is produced and then 
use what we need when there is no production.  Kent said that in 4 years we 
will be saving more because we will have broke even.


Robert will get the rest of the information together and contact World 
Church to be ready with more answers for our meeting on February 13.


Deb moved to Lynn’s question about the hot water heat in the Lodge.  Robert 
stated it is not working yet, that he has worked on it but is at a point that he 
needs to get Dave involved.  He is going to talk to Dave about finishing the 
thermostat wiring that is only half done.  The pump and the thermostat both 
need to be worked on to get it all working properly.  If we can’t get Dave we 
will have to get Peter’s here to get it running.  


Deb asked for a motion to adjourn.  Dawn made the motion, Evelyn seconded.

Meeting adjourned.


Respectfully Submitted


Dawn Durgin




    Camp Nauvoo Operations Group Meeting

          Feb. 13, 2024


The meeting was started with an opening prayer by Deb Batey.


Evelyn announced that Keokuk had made a donation of $12,000 to Camp 
Nauvoo.  This was money that came from closing the Congregational Books.


Deb asked for additions or corrections to the minutes submitted from 
previous meetings.  Brad made a motion to approve the minutes, Evelyn 
seconded.  Vote to accept taken and passed.


Deb asked for a treasurer's report.  Brad reported that he has 3 checks to 
deposit, and that as today we have $254,579 in our account, with money 
having been taken out for groups having paid for 2024 stays. $300 still 
needs to come out for a deposit. Brad stated that we ended our season at the 
end of November, and only had December and January off with a group of 
workers staying here in February and March working.  That brought us an 
additional $2,550 for income before our season starts.  That should pay any 
utilities for the winter.  New griddles are here and paid for.


Deb asked about the new garage door and openers.  Dawn said we have an 
estimate for those, in the amount of $3,874.00.  Lynn made a motion to go 
ahead with the new door and openers.  Brad seconded.  Brad asked about a 
warranty.  Evelyn asked if we were getting one door or 2.  Deb asked for a 
vote-  taken and approved.


Deb moved to mini-splits.  Dawn reported she had talked to Peter’s this 
morning and scheduled time on Wednesday to have the mini-split in the lodge 
replaced.  The control board for the mini-split in the Heather house had not 
come in yet, but they called later to say it arrived and would be here 
Monday to install.  Dawn then reported that Joe Hopp, the electrician, had 
been on the grounds and replaced the 2 lights on poles that had not been 
working, giving light to the playground area and outside of the shed.


Deb then moved to the solar topic.  Robert reported the way that rebates 
are received for solar come from the federal government.  State rebates 
come in a different way.  Robert stated that he had sent the paperwork to 
Denise, who then submitted it to World Church, who then sent it to the 
Presiding Bishopric.  Our next step while we wait is to meet with the Solar 
Companies to discuss placement and details.  Then we decide if we do it all 
or part, and how to pay for the installation.  Ameran electric gives full 
credit for solar received, meaning we will get credit toward our bill in the 
full amount of power that they gain from us.  It was decided that when 
Robert hears back from World Church we will meet again to decide what 
comes next. Robert said he would reach out to the company when we get 
approval, set up a meeting with them and Brad and Lynn for money, then 
schedule a meeting to update the rest of us on how things are progressing.


Deb then moved to discussion about Ourth Hall.  Lynn. Stated that we need a 
support beam down the center of the building to help with power and 



lighting for the inside.  He will talk to Woody when the RVA is here to get 
the proper sizes.  Lighting needs to be updated for the main part and the 
Concessions area.  We also need to have termite control looked at again.  


Pest control issues and contracts were discussed, to update our service.


Discussion led to new trees.  Dawn stated she would like to get new trees, 
preferably evergreens that would grow quickly, to line the side of the shed 
where tress had been taken down as a privacy line/ wind barrier.  Deb asked 
if we could get them from the state at a cheaper price.  Evelyn stated that in 
Missouri sends out information about getting trees that we can maybe get.  
We need to check with the state of Illinois Forestry to see if we can get 
some from them.  Evelyn will check to see if she can get some also.


Deb asked about basketball hoops.  Dawn made a motion to get bids for new 
poles and installation.  Brad asked if they would install them also.  He then 
seconded the motion.  Doug asked if we would get one or two, two was the 
answer.  Dawn said she would order the volley ball and soccer nets also. 
Kent advised a steel cable to keep the net from sagging.  Doug said if they 
are mobile, we should not get steel.  


Deb asked if the deck boards and the center beam would be about all the 
RVA would be able to get done while they are here.  Brad suggested coming 
up with smaller projects that ladies could work on while they are here 
when the guys are busy.  


Deb moved on to moving the labyrinth from Waterloo / Cedar Falls church. 
Robert said there is a chance of the sale of the church, one of the things 
there is called a prayer walk that was done as a memorial for someone may 
be moved, maybe to Camp Nauvoo.  He wonders if we can make it work in the 
pines as an addition to that idea in the pines.  Robert stated he has a couple 
of pictures that he can send out of it.


Deb asked about a work weekend.  The second weekend in March was 
mentioned and set.  Hopefully most people can make it then, March 9-10. 


Dawn stated that there will be a Seventy’s Retreat in the fall, and they 
want to know what the cost will be.  Deb suggested free, or at a reduced 
rate.  Brad stated some fee should be charged to keep from sending mixed 
messages.  The plan for food for the Seventy’s is to be catered, and Brad 
and Dawn will be taking care of set up and clean up.  Lynn suggested a 50% 
fee for each group.  Brad suggested ask what they have budgeted for 
lodging and go with that.  It was decided that we should tell them both that 
they can pay what they feel is appropriate.  We can give them our normal 
rates and what our costs would be and let them make donations.


Brad told about the city calling to tell us we need to have an inspection 
since we have sleeping areas that are used.  We had no problems except to 
put up carbon monoxide detectors on each floor in the lodge and in the 
shower house.  We will get those installed and send him a picture, and one 
of the smoke detectors in the Tiny Houses.  




Deb stated that we will meet again March 12 unless something comes up 
about the solar.  She asked for a motion to adjourn.  Carol made the motion, 
Brad seconded.  Vote taken, Meeting adjourned. 


Respectfully submitted.


Dawn Durgin




       CNOG Meeting 
               May 5, 2024 

Meeting was called to order with an opening prayer by Brad Benge. 

Deb asked if there were questions about the document sent out about 
the installation of the solar system we are working on.  Brad stated 
we cannot afford to go forward on the plan without the rebate.  
Robert stated that world church has given us permission to plan, then 
we have to go to them for permission to go forward. 

Robert gave an explanation to the World Church opposition to the 
solar project, and his idea of a solution to the problem.  He feels that 
some sort of spiritual practice on the campgrounds that is open to all 
who are staying on the grounds would satisfy the Mission Statement of 
the Campgrounds and end the opposition from the World Church. 

Discussion followed about different options to keep the campgrounds 
running as it has been.  Ideas were brought up on things to do, like 
devotions services or campfires.  The question was brought up about 
giving up on the idea of installing solar to keep World Church from 
stopping us from welcoming all who want to come to camp.  World 
church has not returned any calls or emails concerning our insurance 
coverage or value on the campgrounds, making contact with them about 
running the campgrounds hard to do. 

Robert said that we still need to decide what to do about the solar 
installation.  We had planned to write the check to start, but they 
want insurance information that we cannot get, making it hard for us 
to move forward with the project.  We are running out of time to be 
getting this done while we have the opportunity to receive the benefit 
of one-to-one return on our power sold to the electric company.  

Deb asked if we want to make the decision about going forward tonight, 
or if we want to come back another day to finalize the decision.  Kent 
then stated that we may have to go forward without the Federal 
rebate, but that may cost us the ability to file for the state rebate 
also.  Most of us are feeling frustrated about the prospect of losing 
the opportunity to do the solar. 

Deb asked for a motion of what to do next.  Dawn made a motion to kill 
the whole idea of solar, Doug seconded the motion.  Deb asked for 
questions.  Brad commented that we could come back to it, but was told 
that the motion was to kill the idea.  If we decide to try again, we’d have 



to start with a new motion.  Deb call for the vote to kill the solar.  
All voted to kill the project except Robert abstained. 

Robert wants to write a letter to the attorney that we had decided to 
stop the project, but we are all upset and depressed about the 
problems we have faced with this decision.   

Deb said next meeting is May 14.  She’s asking for agenda items and said 
hopefully we’d have better news.  Brad suggested we put a list of 
things that had been accomplished and some good things that is 
happening.  Deb said yes please! 

Meeting adjourned. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dawn Durgin 



         CNOG Meeting 
          May 14, 2024 

Deb Batey offered a prayer to open the meeting. 

Dawn reported that we had a major issue with the Heather Tiny 
House when the RV Assoc was still here.  The problem was with 
the meter controlling the electricity.  That led to a problem with 
the Mini Split. That is going to be fixed with all costs covered 
under warranty with the new unit.  She also stated that we need 
to do something for the house which is sinking and unlevel. 
Robert stated we need to jack it up to level it.  Deb asked Dawn to 
find someone to fix this. 

Dawn stated that she and Doug had worked on the Massey Ferguson 
tractor in the shed at the Retreat House, got it started but it 
wouldn’t stay running.  A guy working with Bob Smith had a big 
truck who pulled it out.  He thinks he knows a guy who would want 
to buy it, but we know no details.  She told about the tractor that 
we got from the Historic Sites that needs over $2,000 to get it 
running.  The tractor is back after no repairs, and is going to sale. 

The golf cart had come back from being repaired still having 
problems.  It was taken back to the shop, looked over and found to 
have a bad coil.  The coil was replaced, the golf cart picked up and 
returned to the grounds after a $300 repair.  We had a ATV that 
needed repair, Randy Reaves offered to buy it for $100 to see if he 
could get it running.   

Ivory House mini split is dead and needs to be replaced. The 
estimate shows $3,831 something- no vote needed to replace it, it’s 
under equipment replacement.  Doug asked about all of the used 
mini-splits in the shed, Dawn reported that they are going to the 
recycling center due to the fact they are not usable. 

Dawn stated that we need to put something to keep the weeds down 
under the playground area.  Keeping weeds under control there is 
a must.  different ideas was discussed, Dawn said she would look 
into green ground cover to put under there. 

Dawn said that we need to put something around the entrance to 
Ourth Hall to keep it from being muddy. Lynn suggested that we 
put gravel down for now to get us a base before we put down 
concrete.  Brad said he had someone to contact for an estimate. 



Evelyn said it would be a good idea to put the gravel down to get 
us through until we can get concrete done.  

Dawn presented a list of things that the RVA had accomplished 
when they were here this spring: 

Lodge deck was replaced. 
Caretaker’s house deck, back deck, and ramp to the office were    
   painted. 
Electricity panels at tent sites were fixed 
New lights put in the lodge lower level restrooms 
Removed old power panels from around caretaker’s house 
New lights in the hallway in the basement of the lodge 
Ladies made new curtains for all rooms in the lodge 
Sink in the nurse’s room did not have hot running water, and now   
  does 
Ladies sorted and organized storage room in the basement in lodge 
Ladies painted inside of some cabins.   
Old metal bunkbeds got taken out of all cabins, new beds put into     
   cabin 17.  These were the beds that came from the Historic Sites    
   and are nice beds with good mattresses, creating the need for   
   being cautious who uses them. 
Placed motion detector lights in the RV area shower houses 
Put a new door on the office in the lodge 
New outlets in the sanctuary in the lodge 
Organized the closet that holds cleaning supplies off of dining  
    hall 

Deb thanked Brad, Julie, Carolyn, and Joe for fixing evening meals 
for the group while they were here.   

Robert reported that he had done more checking on the income 
description for the campgrounds that clears up the question for 
the World Church concerns. All of the information he has found 
leads him to believe that we should go ahead with the solar 
project.  Deb brought up the question that if there will be a 
possibility of the campgrounds being sold in the future, why 
should we push to do solar installation at this time.  Robert 
responded that there is always the need to push forward  even 
when there is an uncertainty of future events.  He reported that 
he had the assurance from the electrical company that any 
systems in place by Dec. 31 would still be receiving the 1-1 dollar 
payments for solar usage.   



Robert made a motion to re-instate the Solar project.  Doug 
seconded the motion.  Kent asked Robert if he could check on the 
money that we received from the power company to see how that 
money would come back to us, and if it would be taxed.   Rebates 
received would be taxable income, however churches and non 
profit organizations are not part of that.  Evelyn asked if we have 
all of what it will cost us to do this project.  Brad reported what 
we have on hand at this moment. That does not include what we 
have in the money market account or the income this season.   

Evelyn made a motion to table the motion until we have answers to 
the questions that are still in place to move forward.  Lynn 
seconded the motion to table.  Vote taken, passed.  Next meeting set 
for Sunday, May 19 at 5 pm. 

Dawn made a motion to adjourn, Doug seconded.  Vote taken, 
passed.  Meeting adjourned. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dawn Durgin 



      CNOG Meeting  
       May, 19, 2024 

Meeting was called to order with a prayer by Dawn Durgin. 

Robert stated that there was a question about his ability to make a motion to 
resume the solar procedure, so Deb made a motion that we go ahead with the 
purchase of the Solar System from Mohrfeld Electric for the campgrounds.  
There was no second, so discussion about other options started.  Doug made 
a motion to look at using another company that would allow us to take 
longer to make the final payment.  Evelyn seconded the motion. 

Robert said he had investigated other companies.  He discovered that the 
other proposals showed estimated costs much higher than Mohrfeld.  He 
compared all estimates with all companies including the projected charges 
and outcomes. Mohrfeld Electric was the best option in all areas.   
Brad made the point that we could do the RV site first, and do the Lodge 
area at a later date.  This would eliminate spending all of the money at one 
time.  Doug stated that getting the 1-1 credit from the electric company is a 
big reason to push forward with the total project now.  Evelyn asked if the 
1-1 credit would go away at the end of this year, Robert replied that he had 
a contact with the power company who made it clear that any system in place 
by Dec. 31 would receive the 1-1 credit, but would disappear after that.  We 
would only get 20-30% credit back on what we sell by waiting past the end 
of the year. 

Deb asked Brad and Lynn for our financial status for this time.  Brad 
reported on what we had paid and what we still need to pay for this year.  
He told what we have in the passbook account, but these amounts do not 
include what is in the money market account. Deb asked if this included what 
will still be coming in for the year.  Dawn reported that we will be taking 
in at least another $20,000 from big groups that are scheduled. 

Evelyn asked what we were planning to do about keeping the panels 
protected.  We would need to put up a fence to keep them safe.   

Discussion followed about the pros and cons of doing the project.  None of 
us want to miss out on the opportunity, combined with the desire to 
overcome costs of electricity.  Rebate money would come back relatively 
soon, along with the saving on electricity. 

Deb asked if we needed more discussion or if we are ready to vote.  Evelyn 
asked if we will be proceeding with the Federal Rebate or pass on it. Doug 
stated that we could decide to do this, then have world church stop us.  
Brad asked who would be signing the contract with Mohrfeld if we go 
forward.  Robert said that remained to be seen.  We still have to determine 
if we want to take the chance with the IRS by doing the rebate.  Brad stated 
that there are a lot of factors that have to be looked at while we decide. 



Part of the idea in dealing with World Church could be dealing with a form 
that would need to be filed, and offering the rebate in exchange for 
lowering our loan balance. 

Doug asked about the time frame for needing a decision in order to get the 
project started.  Robert said we should plan for at least 3 months to 
complete installation.  Kent feels if we tell Mohrfeld to go ahead by June 
we should be running by November.  Doug made a motion to table Solar 
discussion until Kent, Evelyn, and Robert have a meeting with Robin and 
Denise, and that we need to make a decision by June 20 or the plans for 
solar dies.  Dawn seconded.  Vote taken, motion passed. 

Dawn told that her Truck has been in the shop for 3 weeks, and will be 
there until June 2 when the fuel pump gets repaired at a cost of $4,100.  All 
work needing to be done with a truck before the first week of June will 
need to be with someone else’s truck.  Doug made a motion for the 
campgrounds to pay $2,500 towards fixing the truck, due to the fact that it 
is used mostly by the campgrounds.  Carol Brooks seconded.  Vote taken, 
motion passed.   

Deb announced that Special Olympics is selling raffle tickets for a chance 
at a side-by- side.  Deb and Brad had bought tickets with the deal that if they 
win the side-by side comes to the campgrounds. 

Dawn made a motion to adjourn.  Lynn seconded.  Meeting adjourned. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Dawn Durgin



      CNOG Meeting 
      June 10, 2024 

Meeting was called to order with a prayer by Deb Batey. 

Deb asked Todd to talk about the solar project as a member of the 
Campgrounds Board.  He gave the estimated cost of the project and the 
anticipated return for what we produce.  He said that the Board had 
approved the project and that he feels it is good for the earth and for the 
campgrounds.  Brad pointed out that with things that had happened so far 
this year had depleted our funds, making it tough to pay for the project and 
have money to work with.  He pointed out our upcoming expenses and what we 
have on hand. 

Deb said there was a there is a memo from World Church that came as a 
result of a meeting with Denise.  Kent explained that we had been given 
permission to go ahead with the solar project, but we do not have permission 
to file for the Federal Rebate.   

Doug asked for a clarification on the financial status that Brad had listed. 
Brad explained what we have on hand, upcoming expenses, anticipated income. 

Evelyn made a motion that we do the installation of solar for the RV pad 
area and tiny houses this year and save the rest for a later date.  She stated 
that World Church advised we set up our own 501C3, which would allow us 
to do form our own mission statement to provide service to all we wish to 
include.   Lynn seconded the motion to proceed.  He asked if that would 
include the cabins.  Kent stated that the cabins are on a different meter. 
Deb asked about the 1-1, which will no longer be available after the end of 
the year, but we will continue to receive that as soon as we are on-line. 

Doug made a motion to amend Evelyn’s amendment to go ahead with the whole 
project, doing all except the caretaker’s house and the shed.  Dawn 
seconded the motion on the amended motion.  Evelyn asked what the total 
amount would then be.  Kent stated that the RV/Tiny House area would be 
$114,000.  Cabin area would be $30,000, Lodge are would be $99,000.  Total 
would be  $240,000.  Lynn pointed out the the cabin area and the RV/Tiny 
House areas would be placed in the same area, making more sense to do them 
at the same time. 

Evelyn amended her original motion that we do the RV/Tiny house area to 
include the cabin area.  Lynn seconded that motion.  Brad emphasized that 
this will be the only large project for the next 2 years if we do this.  Kent 
stated that the RV/ Tiny house/ Cabin  cost would be $145,516.  Adding the 
lodge would bring it to $244,732.   

Deb asked for a vote on Doug’s amendment to do the total package, minus the 
caretaker’s house and the shed.  Three yeses.  Motion defeated. 
She then called for the vote on Evelyn’s motion to do just the RV/Tiny 
House and Cabin areas.  Seven yeses.  Motion passed.  Brad stated that we 



now need someone to take the lead on working with Mohrfeld on getting 
things started on the project, including final costs and timing. 

Dawn nominated Kent to take the lead on working with the company to see 
what the next steps are, and the upfront costs.  Kent stated he would do it. 
He said he would start tomorrow. 

Lynn wanted to talk about a phone call he received from Card Connect 
about a new program to use ACH for payments, which is an electronic check 
in place of a credit card transaction.  Dawn pointed out that we would need 
to know what the charge will be on using this service.  Dawn made a motion 
to put in place the ACH program.  Doug seconded.  Vote taken, Brad 
abstained, motion passed. 

Dawn sent an estimate about taking down 2 trees in the cabin area.  Estimate 
is $1,450 for dropping those tress, and then we do the clean up.  Lynn made 
the motion to take those trees down, Doug seconded the motion.  Vote taken, 
motion passed.  Dawn will contact the company to make arrangements. 

Dawn reported that she had another electrical problem with the Heather 
House.  She had worked on the problem, talked to Lynn, and called the 
electrician.  He came and found that there had been a problem in the outside 
box, then fixed it.   

Brad has sent out the 5 year plan list, showing what has been done and what 
still needs to be done.  He had gotten a call from the Illinois Department of 
Revenue stating that Lee is listed on their records.  We will need to fill 
out a new application form to get this our of Lee’s name and turn this over 
to a Non-Profit Organization.  

Dawn made a motion to adjourn.   

Respectfully Submitted, 

Dawn Durgin 



      CNOG Meeting 
       July 2, 2024 

Meeting was called to order with a prayer by Deb Batey. 

Dawn reported that there was a family on the grounds for a family reunion, 
stating that they were extremely pleased with their experience.  They told 
that they knew it was going to be wonderful, it turned out more wonderful 
than they had anticipated. 

Dawn introduced Bob Smith, the new owner of the Retreat House and head 
of the Idig Nauvoo group.  Bob thanked the group for their help with the 
work at the house and housing their helpers.  Bob made it clear that none 
of us ever need to ask permission to be on the grounds for any reason. He 
wants us to continue to work together on our joint efforts.  Bob offered 
any help he or the organization can do to help with the solar installation. 
Deb asked how we could work together on the solar plan.  Robert stated 
that we have a 200 amp line that runs from the cabin line to the shed on 
Bob’s property.  If Bob’s group places panels on the shed and a new meter is 
installed, we could get power back from that system.  Bob made an offer for 
his group to help with some of the expense of solar installation, that we 
would then pay Bob for the power we use from the part of the panels that 
they install.   

Doug questioned if the Idig group was going to pay for the system that 
would power the lodge.  Bob said yes and that he has access to solar panels 
that had been discarded form the board he works with.  Robert stated that 
our group could switch to paying for he lodge systems and the Idig group 
then pay for the RV/cabin/tiny house area which is adjacent to the Retreat 
House property which would then feed both areas.  Robert said Mohrfeld 
had sent him the paperwork to sign for the first system, but things could be 
switched around if we decide to go with Bob’s offer. 

Evelyn made a motion to let Robert be the contact person to go ahead with 
the planning of the solar installation.  Doug seconded.  Vote taken, Lynn 
abstained, vote passed.  Robert pointed out that if the Idig group pays for 
the solar system, we would be paying them for the power we use.  Doug said 
he doesn’t want to pay someone else for power we should be benefiting 
from.  Doug would rather pay for the whole project than to be paying 
someone else for what should be ours.  Brad said we cannot afford to go 
ahead with the whole project at this time, Robert disagreed, stating it is 
financially irresponsible to leave $12,000 on the table. 

Robert told of another offer- to front the money for the lodge portion of 
the solar- stating that when we receive the rebates back we repay him. Doug 
is grateful to Bob for his offer, but he does not want to be paying them for 
our power years from now.  He feels we should not miss this opportunity to 
do something positive for the Campgrounds, stating in 2 1/2 years we can be 
saving $25,000 a year on electricity.  He feels we could pay Robert off in 2 
years.  Robert said his offer is to pay for the bill for the installation of 
the panels for the lodge when it comes in, and ask for reimbursement when 



we have the funds to do it with.  This will leave Bob Smith out of it.  Dawn 
asked how hard it would be to disconnect the shed from the cabin meter. 
Robert said that doing all of that would be very easy to do. 

Doug made a motion to accept Robert’s offer to pay for the solar for the 
lodge.  Evelyn seconded the motion, deb asked if we are ready to vote.  Brad 
asked if this overrules the motion to only do the RV/Cabins/Tiny houses, but 
it does not affect that.  This motion only affects the Lodge.  Vote taken- 
motion passed.  Robert is going to oversee this whole project. 

Deb stated that we have decided to go ahead with the purchase of the new 
exhaust fan for the kitchen.  Doug asked for clarification on the new fan. 
Brad answered that this will add extra power and a secondary booster with 
a switch that will control the speed of the fan. 

Doug made a motion to adjourn, Dawn seconded, vote taken, meeting 
adjourned. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Dawn Durgin 



      CNOG Meeting 
       Aug. 13, 2024 

Brad Benge offered an opening prayer. 

Brad presented an estimate for expenses for the rest of the year.  He gave 
the rundown of our on hand funds and the projected amounts for the 
upcoming year, as a start for coming up with a budget to be in place for 
Mission Center Conference.   

Doug told of the new internet service that Burlington is using, which is 
cheaper than what we are using.  He said they have 2 types of routers, one 
for inside and one for inside.  We could use one in the 3 areas which should 
help with service in each area.  Brad made the point that service could be 
spotty if we have too many people trying to use it at one time.  Doug said he 
would look into it, with the concern of how many people could use it at one 
time, especially in the RV area.  Robert said if we start looking into internet 
options we should look at Star- Link which would be satellite internet. 

Deb asked Robert to do a report on Solar.  Mohrfeld said the 3 projects 
have been put in place, the one for the cabins has been approved by Ameren, 
the other 2 are still in the works, due to the size of the systems.  They are 
hoping t be ready to start working in September.  There is also an 
application to the state for the Renewable Energy Credits, which will be a 
sizable amount. When the materials arrive we will need to make our first 
payment.  Final payment will be expected when the project is completed. 
Brad said the city needed a building permit to do solar, he had picked up a 
copy of it with Mohrfeld so they can start the work. 

Dawn gave a report that the Skid mower is dead.  The engine overheated to 
the point of melting the oil cap into part of the motor.  Cost to repair it 
would be $4,500, which was not recommended.  Trade in value is not existent 
due to the condition of the mower.  Estimates were sent for replacement 
options.  One is for a used one for $7,500 for the same type that we have, 
and $9,500 for a smaller, more user friendly type.  No age was available on 
the larger one, but the smaller one is about 3 years old.  Brad told of 
mowers available at an auction site in Ft Madison.  Evelyn was concerned 
that we would not have any idea on any usage or care on items at auction, as 
opposed to buying new. Doug offered to go to the dealership to look at what 
is available.  Deb said that when Doug gets information on the mowers we 
would have another meeting to go forward with a mower. 

Dawn reported that the tractor that we could not use that had come from 
the Histioric Sites has been sold for $750.   

Robert asked if anyone was doing any marketing of the lodge.  His idea is to 
work with the John Whitmer Historical Association, who hold a conference 
every year.  He feels we could be an option of a place to hold their 
meetings, but it would require some expenses to get us capable to hold 
these groups.  Deb asked how many people this would involve, 175. 



We would need to have video and internet equipment in the 3 rooms used for 
breakout groups, as well as a the sanctuary, up to a possibility of 5 rooms.  
We would need to be able to broadcast and recording.  These conferences 
are held in September and are usually attended by older people who would 
need rooms, not necessarily wishing to use cabins.  That might however 
attract some younger people, or those wishing to have lower cost lodging 
available. 

Brad a motion to adjourn.  Dawn seconded.  Vote taken, meeting adjourned. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Dawn Durgin 



       CNOG Meeting   
       Aug. 18, 2024 

Meeting was held for Doug to Report on what he found in looking for a new 
mower.  He told about the 3 year old Skag we had received a quote on, 
telling that the condition was ok for 3 years, with 284 hours on it.  He was 
told about a new mower like we have, for $12,000 with a 60”  cut.  Doug 
asked about a 72” cut and was given a price of $12,200, brand new with a 
full 3 year, 750 hour warranty.  He checked with John Deere who was told 
they were out of their new 72’ mowers, but have some on order with no idea 
when they would be coming.  They could not compete with the offer of the 
new Skag mower.  We would get a discount of close to $4,800 on the brand 
new mower.  Service time was discussed, acknowledging that they had worked 
on those problems and came up with a solution, assuring us that it would no 
longer be a problem.   

Dawn made a motion to buy the 72” Skag mower at a price of $12,200, Evelyn 
seconded the motion.  Brad voiced his concern of spending this money with 
the solar expenses upcoming.  He made it cleat that this has to be the last 
thing we do. Evelyn pointed out that we wouldn’t be doing it now if the 
engine hadn’t needed fixed.  Deb called for the vote- unanimously passed. 
Dawn will call to inform them that we are buying it, Brad will go pay for it 
when Dawn goes to pick up the old and the new mowers. 

Dawn made a motion to adjourn, Lynn seconded.  Meeting adjourned. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dawn Durgin 



      CNOG Meeting        
      Oct. 22, 2024 

Deb called the meeting to order with an opening prayer. 

Deb started the meeting talking about solar.  Dawn reported they are 
very close to being finished, and we will absolutely be up and running by 
November 1.  Robert said that we have been billed for the first half of 
the bill.  Brad has paid for the first half of two of the systems and 
Robert has paid for the lodge system.  Robert has verified that the date 
for reset is October 1, helping use as much as we can before we lose what 
we haven’t used.  Doug pointed out that we will need to do something for 
weed barrier around the panels, and also a fence of some sort for 
protection of the panels.  We may be able to get the RVA do the fence 
installation in the spring.  Doug will get some measurements.   

Brad talked about the work that is progressing on the budget, explaining 
the different ways of listing items to make it more clear when looking at 
it.  He explained what we have on hand and what the expenses still are 
that need to be paid.  Doug asked about the hotel/motel tax, if it is 
consistent.  That varies with usage, and there will be an increase from 
the city.  Doug asked about the credit card fees, what percentage we are 
paying on credit card usage.  Credit card fees are not being recovered.  
Dawn stated we may have to start charging a fee to customers using 
credit cards to pay in order to cover our costs.  Dawn said she would do 
some checking on fees we should be charging to recover those costs. 

Dawn made a motion to approve the proposed budget, Doug seconded the 
motion.  Vote taken, approved. 

Deb asked if we had updates on what is happening on the grounds.  Dawn 
reported that she had taken to loads of metal to the Metal Recycling 
Center in Hamilton and received 2 checks total $191.50.  A lot came out of 
the shed that Bob Smith had cleaned out and the old garage door and 
miscellaneous items.  Three workers are still here, one planning to leave 
Nov.1, the other 2 here until the work is done, late December.  Doug asked 
about the sale of the 5th wheel.  Dawn said she is waiting for a call to 
say he is coming to pick it up.   

Dawn reported that Larry Turley is looking to sell his golf cart for 
$3,000.  When the 5th wheel sells we want to buy that golf cart.  It is 
electric with only 2 seats but we can put another one on if we choose. 
Brad made a motion to buy the golf cart from Larry when the 5th wheel is 
sold.  Evelyn seconded.  Deb called for a vote- motion carried. 

Doug stated that he would like to look at getting a smaller zero turn 
mower to be able to mow around the RV pads and the cabins.  We can look 
for a used one in the $3,500-$4,000 range.  Dawn also said we need to be 
looking at putting new mini-splits in some of the cabins.  WE know we will 
have to replace the one in the red tiny house also.   



The question was raised about when to expect rebates for the solar so 
that we know when we will have that money back.  Part of it is underway. 

Dawn stated she is concerned about the lower large groups reserved for 
next summer.  She did report that we are getting reservations already 
lined up for RVs for next year, and bookings are still coming in for this 
year.  Two workers are also still here thru December, along with a 
hunter who will be here for a while.  Income for this year is still coming 
in, later than normal.   

Brad stated they are working on putting together a manual for 
organizing retreats, giving guidelines for booking, announcing and 
planning food and activities for retreats.   

Dawn reported having gotten tired of dealing with the installation 
company who was to have put up the basketball hoop and made 
arrangements to get the last one put up by someone else.  She got the 
information on payments made for the installation and went to Dick’s 
Sporting Goods to explain the dissatisfaction with their installers and 
told them she wanted it refunded.  She was given a refund for $963.00. 
Tracy Chamness has gotten the pole in place and is ready for getting the 
backboard up.   

Doug made a motion to adjourn.  Dawn seconded.  Vote taken, meeting 
adjourned. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Dawn Durgin



             CNOG Meeting  
        Nov. 12, 2024 

Meeting was opened with a prayer by Dawn Durgin. 

Brad is to continue to work on the budget.   

Election of officers is coming up soon.  Carol has declined to be re-elceted, 
Lee will be receiving an honorary lifetime membership. Evelyn reported Rex 
has voiced an interest in being a CPA/bookeeper for both campgrounds and 
the Mission Center. 

Dawn reported the Solar Panels are all up and running at full capacity.  
There had been an error code due to not having internet communications for 
all systems.  We have earned $101 from Nov. 1 thru today.  Final bills had 
come in, one being for $58,702.00 for the RV panel. Cabin meter final is 
$15,802, for a total of $74,000.  $49,108. Is due for the Lodge meter.  Robert 
has agreed to pay the part for the lodge.  He is filling out the forms for 
rebates from the state, mostly every quarter for the next 6 years.  Federal 
money is being worked on. 

Deb asked if the stuff being stored in Ourth Hall for CVG is still here.  We 
need to get that out of there so that it is available for usage.  There are 4 
large book shelves that need to come out, along with 2 refrigerators and 2 
racks of chairs, some of which is supposed to go to CVG.  Dawn also needs 
helpers to get picnic tables put away for the winter.  

Brad wants to work on our 5 year plan so that we can get a good idea of 
things that need to be done so that we can plan our budget properly.  We 
have mini-splits to replace, a couple of cabins that need new roofs.  We have 
cabins that need to have new bunk beds built for them.   

Deb asked if we want to meet in December.  The answer is only if we need to. 

Doug made a motion to adjourn, Lynn seconded.  Vote taken, meeting 
adjourned. 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Dawn Durgin 



      CNOG Meeting 
       Dec. 15, 2024 

Meeting was called to order with a prayer by Dawn Durgin. 

Deb welcomed new group members Carolyn Baker and Tracy 
Chamness.  She thanked Brad and Robert for their work on 
the camp budget for the upcoming year. 

Brad presented the proposed budget to the group and went 
over what has been prepared.  He explained the reasoning 
behind the proposed income and how he came to those 
numbers.  We can anticipate some of the income, but not all 
due to not being able to predict reservations. 

Brad then moved to going over the budgeted expenses 
listed, explaining how he tried to come up with what we 
anticipate the expenses that we will have.  Lynn explained 
the differences between Camp Spot fees and the fees that 
Square charges and how those fees are covered.  We talked 
about the credit card fees that we are paying on the 
amount campers pay when they use a credit card.  We may 
need to add a charge for credit card usage to recoup some 
of those fees. 

Brad then explained that our HOW loan from world church 
has gone up from 4% to 6.75%, raising what we pay for 
interest to go higher than our principal payment.  He also 
pointed out the difference in our projected power bills, 
and the replacement and repairs that we did as a one time 
payment that will not be in the upcoming year. 

Deb asked if we were ready to make a motion to approve the 
budget.  Doug made a motion to approve the budget, Lynn 
seconded the motion.  Deb asked for any discussion, none.  
Deb then asked for a vote- unanimously passed. 



Dawn then brought up removal of a tree that has rotted in 
the center and needs to come down.  She will call to get an 
estimate to bring to the next meeting. 

Deb then called for a motion to adjourn, Dawn made a 
motion to adjourn, Doug seconded.  Motion passed, meeting 
adjourned. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Dawn Durgin 


	24.01.09 CN Minutes
	24.01.23 CN Minutes
	24.02.13 CN Minutes
	24.05.05 CN Minutes
	24.05.14 CN Minutes
	24.05.19 CN Minutes
	24.06.10 CN Minutes
	24.07.02 CN Minutes
	24.08.13 CN Minutes
	24.08.18 CN Minutes
	24.10.22 CN Minutes
	24.11.12 CN Minutes
	24.12.15 CN Minutes

